
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  August 16, 2023 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

 
PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 

Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon. 
 
 

 
 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM August 8 & August 9, 2023 

  6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

  7. PLANNING COMMISSION & COMMITTEE OF CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT WORK PLANS FY2023-2024  
   – Sidney Mulder 
   
  8. SURPLUS PROPERTY DISPOSITION / WELLS FARGO BUILDING & ORDER NO. 23-11 – Greg Hansen 
 
  9.  RECLASSIFICATION OF AN EMPLOYEE – Matt Hawkins 

 
 
 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
        

(a) Polk County Contract No. 23-169, Dallas School District 
(Dana Goodale, Family & Community Outreach) 
 

   (b)   Polk County Contract No. 23-170, Service Contract 
    (Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 

   (c)   Polk County Contract No. 23-172, Marion County 

    (Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 
   (d)  New Job Specification & Wage, Discovery/Evidence Supervisor 
    (Matt Hawkins, Admin Services Director)  

 

                              THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 
 
  ADJOURNMENT 

    
    
 
 
 
 



POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY MEETING MINUTES 

August 8, 2023 

 

1. At 9:01 a.m., Commissioner Gordon declared the Tuesday meeting of the Polk County Board 
of Commissioners in session and led the Board and attending audience in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. Commissioner Pope and Commissioner Mordhorst were present. 
 
 
2. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda): 

 None. 
 
 
 
3. MINUTES:  COMMISSIONER POPE  MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST 

  SECONDED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF August 1, 2023 
 
                     MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 

 
4. STAR RECOGNITION AWARD 

The Board and staff would like to give Special Thanks and Recognition to Doug Akin who was 
nominated for the STAR Recognition program for FY2022-2023 Q4. Commissioner Gordon read 
aloud his nomination and thanked him for all of his hard work. Mr. Akin was presented with a signed 
certificate and a gift basket. The STAR Recognition program allows for department heads to 
nominate an employee for recognition each quarter. 

 
 
 
 
 

5. NON-LISTED ITEMS - (Pursuant to ORS 192.640, the Board of Commissioners considered the 
below identified non-listed items.) 

None. 
 
 
 

 

Commissioner Gordon adjourned the meeting at 9:06 a.m. 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda 
Approved: August 15, 2023 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES August 9, 2023  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Gordon declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Mordhorst and Commissioner Pope were present. 
 
Staff present: Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer 
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 
The Homeless Prevention Advisory Council will be meeting on August 9, 2023 from 12:00 pm to 1:30 
pm located in the first floor conference room at 182 SW Academy St, Dallas Oregon, 97338. 
 
The Polk County Fair will begin Wednesday August 9, 2023 at 2:00 PM located at the Polk County 
Fairgrounds and continue through Saturday August 12, 2023. 
 
The Polk County Board of Commissioners will be attending a lunch and learn meeting with the Polk 
County District Attorney’s office on August 15, 2023, located at 820 SE Church St Ste 100, Dallas 
Oregon. 

 
3. COMMENTS 
 None. 
 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.  
 
5.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING OF August 2, 2023 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF August 2, 2023. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
  



August 9, 2023 
Page 2 

 

  

7. LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARDS 
 The Board of Commissioners and staff recognized the following employees for their years of 

service: 

• Lisa Hanson, 25 years of service. 
 
 
 
8. RECLASSIFICATION OF AN EMPLOYEE 

Matt Hawkins, Admin Services Director, is recommending the reclassification of an employee 
from an Engineer Survey Tech III to the Survey Crew Chief Position. Should the reclassification 
be approved, it would be effective August 1, 2023 and would have a fiscal impact for the FY23-
24 budget of approximately $3,700 including PERS contribution should it be for 12 months. 

 
  APPROVED BY CONSENSUS OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
9. RECLASSIFICATION OF AN EMPLOYEE 

Matt Hawkins, Admin Services Director, is recommending the reclassification of an employee 
from an HS Administrative Specialist II to an HS Administrative Analyst I position. Should the 
reclassification be approved, it would be effective July 1, 2023 and would have a fiscal impact 
for the FY23-24 budget of approximately $3,000 including PERS contribution should it be for 12 
months.  

 
   APPROVED BY CONSENSUS OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

a) Polk County Contract No. 23-168, ODOT 
(Jodi Merritt, Community Corrections Director) 
 

b) Polk County Resolution No. 23-12, Amending Master Fee Schedule Fees 
(Aaron Felton, District Attorney) 

 
 
There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Gordon adjourned the meeting 
at 9:05 a.m. 
 

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Jeremy Gordon, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Craig Pope, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: August 16, 2023 



Porr CouNrY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

POLK COUNTY
POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE r. DALLAS, OREGON 97338

(s03) 623-9237

Board of Commissioners

Sidney Mulder, Planning Manager

August 8,2023

Planning Commission (PC) and Committee of Citizenlnvolvement (CCI) Work
Plans for 2023-2024

AUSTIN M"GUIGAN
Director

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

RE:

August 16,2023 - Agenda

RECOMMENDATION: Prioritize andapprove a2023-2024 Planning Commission (PC) Work
Plan and Committee of Citizen Involvement (CCf Work Plan.

ISSUE: What are the needed PC and CCI work tasks and their order of priority for 2023 and

2024?

BACKGROUND:

\\Earth\voll\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\PC\Work Plans\Work Plan (2023-2024)\BOC (August

2023)\WorkPlan2023 -2024 (BOC Memo).doc

Staff developed a draft2023-2024PC Work Plan and conducted a work session with the PC on
July 18, 20*. The draft work plan identified new projects anticipat"{ by staff and suggestions
for'others. During the work seision, the PC openly discussed the draft work plan and re-
prioritized task I.{=o. 8, 'oUpdates to PCZO 125.}rc" and moved it up in order to priority task No
5.

Staff also developed a draft 2023-2024 CCI Work Plan and conducted a work session with the

CCI on July 18, 2OZZ. The objectives for the CCI are provided in Board Directive 08-02.
Broadly, the Board's objectiv-e for the CCI is to enhance citizenparticipation in the legislative
plannirig process. As stated by the Board, "fl]egislative policy matters [...] determine the
ipecific-content of the Compiehensive Plan, Zonrng Ordinance, or Transpo{ation Systems flan."
The legislative planning process differs from zoning activity (current.planning), which consists
of the implementation of the Polk County ZoningOrdinance or Subdivision and Partition
Ordinanc^e; primarily through the procesiing of land use applications. Staff recommends that the
CCI work pian items be designed to assist in generating citizen involvement in the legislative
projects that are identified on the PC work plan and in the ministerial State law update projects
that do not require Planning Commission review.



DISCUSSION/ALTERNATIVES :

1. Approve the2023-2024PC Work Plan and CCI Work Plan as recommended by the PC/CCI,

included as Attachment A;

2. Identiff needs, develop, and prioritize recommended projects for inclusion on the 2023-2024

PC Work Plan and CCI Work Plan; or

3. Other.

FISCAL IMPACT: Project costs may vary. Staff time, notification and publishing costs are

impacts to Polk County for each Legislative Amendment project.

\\EarIh\voI1\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\PC\Work Plans\Work Plan (2023-2024)\BOC (August

2023)WorkPlan2023 -2024 (BOC Memo).doc

2



Work Task

)
S

Transportation Systems Plan (TSP) Update for the OR 51 I OR22 Project. This project is already in 149 Polk County TSP;
howefer, if the preferred alternative changes from the Expressway ManagementPlan, ? TSI update would be needed. As more
information beiomes available and if a TSP updated is delermined to be required, this Legislative Amendment should be a high
priority for long range planning projects.

Updates toPCZO Chapter lTTrTimber Conservation (TC) Zone. Review all mandatory changes and optional changes for
uses within the TC zone.
Updates toPCZO Chapter 138, Farm Forest (FF) and Farm Forest Overlay (FFO) Zones.
and optional changes for use within the FF and FFO zones.

Review all mandatory changes

construction of a
(Rv) during constructron.

for temporary residential use

Rural Accessory Dwelling U
counties to permit an ADU in
related to wildfire risks.

nits Bill (SB) 0644 (2023 effective on May 8, 2 023,
areas zoned for rural residential use, subject to certarn development standards, including standards

Development Standards for Northwest Polk Unincorporated Comm
does not have development standards listed inPCZO Chapter 112. Staff
the NPC-C zone.

unity Commercial (NPC-C)Zone. TheNPC-C zone
would include a reference to development standards for

Update PCZO Chapter 114; Nonconforming Buildings and Uses. Update for
State law

clarification and to ensure consistency with

Update PCZO Chapter 178; Floodplain Overlay Zone.

Zoning Ordinance Audit.

Other - As determined appropriate by the Planning Commission and/or Board of Com mrsstoners.

Priority'

1

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

11

ATTACHMENT A

Plannins Commission Work Plan 2023-2024

I Priorities may be modified as projects that are not under the control of Polk County are presented for consideration.

\\EarrhWoII\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\PC\Work Plans\Work Plan(2023-2024)\BOC (August 2023)U023-24 Work PlanPC.doc



ATTACHMENT A

Committee for Citizen Involvement Work Plan 2023-2024
Work

Participate in ODOT Open Houses for future TSP Updates

Hold additional Open Houses as necessary

Priority

I

2

\\Earth\voll\cROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\PC\Work Plans\Work Plan(2023-2024)\BOC (August 2023)U023-24 Work PlanPC.doc



Order No. 23-11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

FOR THE COUNTY OF POLK, STATE OF OREGON 

 

IN THE MATTER OF SELLING  ) 

PROPERTY NOT NEEDED FOR COUNTY ) 

USE PURSUANT TO ORS § 271.310. ) 

    )  

 

ORDER NO. 23-11 

 

              WHEREAS, Polk County purchased land identified by Polk County Tax Account 

numbers 145280, 145251, and 488714, site address: 636 Main St, Dallas OR 97338; and  

 WHEREAS, Polk County’s original use for the property is no longer needed; and 

WHEREAS, ORS § 271.310 permits Polk County sell any real property when deemed 

such a sale is in the best interest of the County as the land is no longer needed for County 

purposes;   

 

           THEREFORE, THE POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ORDER 

AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. It is in the best interest of Polk County to sell the property identified as Polk County 

Tax Account numbers 145280, 145251, and 488714, site address: 636 Main St, Dallas 

OR 97338 as the property is not needed for public use. 

2. The Polk County Staff is hereby directed to make all necessary steps to complete a 

sale of the above described property. 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 



Order No. 23-11 
 

 

3. The minimum price for the sale of the property shall be $775,000.00. 

  

 

Dated this 16th day of August, 2023 at Dallas, Oregon. 

 

 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

  

Jeremy Gordon, Chair 

 

 

  

Craig Pope, Commissioner 

 

  

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 

  

      

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

  

Morgan Smith 

County Counsel 

 

 



HUMAN RESOURCES
POLK COUNTY POLKCOUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338-3I74

(s03) 623-1888 *FAx (503) 623-1889

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Commissioners

Matt Hawkins, Admin. Services Director

August 11,2023

Reclassification of a Deputy District Attomey I

Wednesday - August 16,2023 (5 minutes)

RECOMMENDATION:
The Board of Commissioners approve the reclassification of a Deputy District Attorney I.

ISSUE:
Shall the Board approve the reclassifications?

DISCUSSION:
It is recommended that Shannon Clausen be reclassified from a Deputy District Attorney I to a Deputy
District Attorney II. Aaron Felton, District Attorney, reports that Shannon has been taking on much
more involved cases than a Deputy DA I usually prosecutes and some of these cases have been very
high profile. These higher profile cases are usually prosecuted by a Deputy DA II. Shannon has
performed very well, thus the reason Mr. Felton has requested this reclassification.

Shannon is currently at step 4 of the Deputy DA I position which is $7,076. If the reclassification is
approved Shannon will move to step I of the Deputy DA II position which is $7,359.

Should the reclassification be approved it would be effective August 1,2023.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This reclassification will have an impact on the budget for FY 23-24 of approximately $4,500
including PERS contribution should it be for 12 months.



Contract  Review Sheet

Staff Contact:  

Title:  

Department:

Consent Calendar Date:  

Contractor Name:  

Address:  

Background/Discussion: 

    Thru: 
City, State, Zip: 
Effective Dates - From: 
Contract Amount: $ 

Fiscal Impact:  

Recommendation:  

Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:   

Name:  

Name:  

Name:

E-mail:  

E-mail:  

E-mail:

Source Selection: 
Sole Source 

Competitive Quotes 

Formal Bid

Request for Proposals

Personal Services

Special/Exempt Procurement (explain below): 

_______________________________________________

_______________________________________________



Polk County Contract No. 23-169















 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Behavioral Health  Consent Calendar Date:  August 16, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  David Flynn 

 Address:  4640 Croisan Creek Road S 

 City, State, Zip:  Salem, OR 97302 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  Varies 

 Background: 

 David Flynn has agreed to provide Behavioral Health services to referred Polk County Behavioral 
 Health individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 This contract is a continuation of services David Flynn has been providing Polk County individuals in 
 the past fiscal year. David Flynn meets the criteria for a service provider and has been cleared to 
 work with us through a criminal history records review. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Behavioral Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract. The fiscal year 2023-2024 Behavioral Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this 
 agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with David Flynn. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  06/26/23 

 CONTRACTOR  DAVID FLYNN 
 4640 CROISAN CREEK ROAD S 
 SALEM, OR 97302 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 CONTACT PERSON:  DAVID FLYNN 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide Qualified Mental Health Professional services as 
 outlined in Exhibit B. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM JULY 01, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  240-8540-540-M25

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  VARIES 

 TERMS:  Service Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 23-170



 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 a poli�cal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereina�er referred to as "County" and 

 DAVID FLYNN 
 4640 CROISAN CREEK ROAD S 

 SALEM, OR 97302 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 hereina�er referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 opera�on; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cer�ficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  par�es  above-men�oned,  for  and 
 in considera�on of the mutual promises hereina�er stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 facili�es,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  loca�on,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  loca�on  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  en�tled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  a�ached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  considera�on  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 July  1,  2023,  and  ending  June  30,  2024,  payment  shall  be  retroac�ve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  a�er  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submi�ed  in  wri�ng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both Par�es. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effec�ve  upon  the  signature  of  all  par�es.  It  is  understood  by  both  par�es 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  termina�on  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submi�ed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  suppor�ng 
 documenta�on and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  en�tle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limita�on,  but  by  way  of  illustra�on,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vaca�on,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  over�me,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensa�on, unemployment compensa�on or re�rement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 



 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib u�ng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  a�ached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condi�ons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  par�es.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  ma�er 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the par�es hereto. 

 B.  Cap�ons:  The  cap�ons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  Obliga�on  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga �on  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  opera�ng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its a�achments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  Rela�onship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 opera�on  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  �me  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall no�fy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client Informa�on: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informa�on  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra �on  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibili�es  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wri�en  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wri�en  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 a�orney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informa�on,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regula�ons  regarding  Communica�on  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  Communica�ons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  du�es  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regula�ons, 
 and its obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  Rehabilita�on  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  Sec�on  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita �on  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemen�ng  Federal  regula�ons,  including 
 Execu�ve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regula�ons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accoun�ng  prac�ces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  �mes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  sta�s�cs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at �mes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  sta�s�cal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  �mes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  facili�es  review  (including  mee�ngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  ra�os  and  job 
 descrip�ons,  and  mee�ngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  �me  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  Reten�on  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  a�er  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  ma�ers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  li�ga�on  or 
 other  ac�on  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  un�l  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  ac�on  are  resolved 
 or un�l the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malprac�ce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resul�ng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  �mes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  ac�vi�es,  opera�ons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addi�onal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  sa�sfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  with  provision  for  increased 
 coverage  as  such  limits  are  increased  by  legisla�ve  ac�on.  In  the  event  of  unilateral 
 cancella�on  or  restric�on  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance 
 policy  referred  to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  no�fy  the 
 County verbally and in wri�ng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execu�on  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  Cer�ficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  Cer�ficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addi�onal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancella�on,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior no�ce to the County. 

 L.  Subcontrac�ng:  Unless  subcontrac�ng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wri�en  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  a�ached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obliga�ons  of  the  County  in  addi�on  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  considera�on.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  inves�gator's  du�es  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualifica�ons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on:  Any  altera�ons,  varia�ons,  modifica�ons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wri�ng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  a�ached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  ac�vi�es  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authori�es,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  a�er 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  con�nued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  a�er  giving  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec �ve  date  of  termina�on.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obliga�on  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termina�on. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 �tled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  a�er  giving  the  Contractor  wri�en 
 no�ce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  un�l  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  �me  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  �tled  "Termina�on."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  ac�ons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "Termina�on" clause. 

 P.  Termina�on:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  par�es  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  par�es  at  any  �me  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  no�ce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wri�ng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  Cer�fied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effec�ve  upon  delivery  of  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condi�ons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  Legisla�ve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quan�ty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  par�es,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  en�tled  “Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on”  to 
 accommodate a reduc�on in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regula�ons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cer�ficate  required  by  law  or  regula�on  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cer�ficate. 

 iv.  Termina�on  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga�ons  or 
 liabili�es  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  termina�on, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es 
 a�er  the  termina�on  date,  which  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  termina�on  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  ac�on  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wri�en  no�ce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the �me speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 a�er  receipt  of  wri�en  no�ce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obliga�ons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  termina�on,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addi�on  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  ac�ons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  ac�ons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modifica�on  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wri�ng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representa�ve  of  the  County,  and  a�ached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph en�tled "Re-nego�a�on or Modifica�on". 

 S.  Severability:  The  par�es  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdic�on  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obliga�ons 
 of  the  par�es  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 par�cular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wri�ng. 

 U.  Non-Discrimina�on:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orienta�on,  na�onal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discrimina�on  in  the  selec�on,  compensa�on  or  the  employ ment 
 prac�ces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wri�en  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  a�ached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condi�ons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obliga�on  of  the  county 
 in addi�on to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement considera�on. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cer�fies  that  at  the  �me  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  an�cipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri a�on or limita�on. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  en�tled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  a�er 
 giving  wri�en  no�fica�on  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  �me,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  en�ty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  ac�vity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  un�l  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 en�ty.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  Contribu�ons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 1.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecu�on  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 2.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribu�ons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 3.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  Corpora�on  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 4.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connec�on  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represen�ng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obliga�on  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  �me  and  a 
 half  for  all  over�me  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 sec�on 201 to 209 from receiving over�me. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associa�on  or  corpora�on,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  a�en�on,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  Compensa�on  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condi�ons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  Disabili�es  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  Disabili�es 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 10 



 SIGNATURE PAGE 

 BY SIGNATURE BELOW, both par�es agree to and accept all terms and condi�ons of this 
 Agreement between County and Contractor along with the following: 

 ●  Exhibit A: Business Associate Agreement
 ●  Exhibit B: Statement of Work

 CONTRACTOR 

 Signature  Date 
 Title: 

 COUNTY 

 Chair  Date 
 Board of Commissioners 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 Morgan Smith  Date 
 County Counsel 

 11 



 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY  and  DAVID FLYNN 

 1.  DEFINITIONS: 

 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any 
 and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  defini�on  as  those  in  the  HIPAA 
 Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon, 
 shall  be  referred  to  as  “COUNTY”  and  David  Flynn,  shall  be  referred  to  as 
 “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on  other  than 
 as permi�ed or required by this BA Agreement or as permi�ed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health Informa�on other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  mi�gate,  to  the  extent  prac�cable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  by 
 CONTRACTOR in viola�on of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restric�ons  and 
 condi�ons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informa�on. 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa�on in performance of Business Associate func�ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden�fiable Health Informa�on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa�on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 
 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  prac�ces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  rela�ng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  �me  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on 
 and  informa�on  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  �me  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informa�on  collected  in  accordance 
 with  sec�on  2.A  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 
 this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on to 
 perform certain health plan func�ons for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the 
 Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 
 would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 
 policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 13 



 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 A.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any limita�on(s) in the  No�ce of Privacy 
 Prac�ces  of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR  § 164.520, to the extent that 
 such limita�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 B.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revoca�on of, 
 permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on, to the 
 extent that such changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected 
 Health Informa�on. 

 C.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any restric�on to the use or disclosure of 
 Protected Health Informa�on that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 
 CFR § 164.522, to the extent that such restric�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or 
 disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 
 use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on in any manner that would not be 
 permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or 
 disclosure is permi�ed under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 A.  Term  . This BA Agreement shall be effec�ve as of July  01, 2023, and shall terminate 
 when all of the Protected Health Informa�on provided by the COUNTY to 
 CONTRACTOR, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is 
 destroyed or returned to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 
 Protected Health Informa�on, protec�ons are extended to such informa�on, in 
 accordance with the termina�on provisions in this Sec�on. 

 B.  Termina�on for Cause  . Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge  of a material breach by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 i.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 
 interven�on of the COUNTY within the �meline specified in Sec�on III (P) of the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 ii.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and 
 the Polk County Agreement within the �meline specified in Sec�on III of the Polk 
 County Agreement. At the direc�on of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may 

 14 



 terminate this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permi�ed in 
 Sec�on III of the Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the 
 breach upon conclusion of the technical assistance and correc�ve ac�on 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this sec�on; or 

 iii.  If neither termina�on nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the viola�on 
 to the Secretary. 

 C.  Effect of Termina�on  . 

 i.  Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this sec�on, upon termina�on of this BA 
 Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected 
 Health Informa�on received from the COUNTY, or created or received by 
 CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected 
 Health Informa�on that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
 CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 ii.  In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 
 Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 
 COUNTY wri�en no�fica�on of the condi�ons that make return or destruc�on 
 infeasible. Upon wri�en acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 
 destruc�on of Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall 
 extend the protec�ons of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health 
 Informa�on and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health 
 Informa�on to those purposed that make the return or destruc�on infeasible, for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health Informa�on. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 A.  Regulatory References  . References in this BA Agreement  to the Privacy Rule or any 
 sec�on of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or sec�on as in effect or as 
 amended. 

 B.  Amendment  . The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take  such ac�on as is 
 necessary to amend this BA Agreement from �me to �me as is necessary for the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 C.  Survival  . The respec�ve rights and obliga�ons of  CONTRACTOR under Sec�on 6.C of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the termina�on of this BA Agreement. 

 15 



 D.  Interpreta�on  . Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 
 COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between 
 the provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy 
 Rule, the Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other 
 federal law is more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or 
 federal law shall control. 

 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 A.  Background Requirement  : The COUNTY, in accordance  with § 164.306 and § 164.308 
 (b), may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 
 Protected Health Informa�on on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 
 sa�sfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 
 appropriately safeguard the informa�on. The COUNTY must document the 
 sa�sfactory assurances through a wri�en contract or other arrangement with the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 B.  Part I. Security Assurances  : The CONTRACTOR will Implement  administra�ve, 
 physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
 confiden�ality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health 
 informa�on that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 
 COUNTY as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
 1996 and the requirements of Health Insurance Reform, the Security Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 i.  Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 
 informa�on, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 
 protect it. 

 ii.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 iii.  Authorize termina�on of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 C.  Part II.  Other arrangements:  When the COUNTY and the  CONTRACTOR are both 
 governmental en��es, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 i.  It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objec�ves of Part I.; or 

 16 



 ii.  Other  law  (including  regula�ons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objec�ves of Part I. 

 D.  If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a func�on or ac�vity on behalf of 
 the COUNTY or to provide a service described in the defini�on of CONTRACTOR as 
 specified in § 160.103 of the regula�on to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 
 CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 
 Informa�on on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 
 without mee�ng the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will a�empt in 
 good faith to obtain sa�sfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will 
 document the a�empt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if 
 not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 
 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 POLK  COUNTY,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon  and,  DAVID  FLYNN,  hereina�er 
 called “Contractor,” hereby agree to the following: 

 1.  STATEMENT OF SERVICES 

 A.  Contractor  agrees  to  work  within  scope,  training  and  experience  as  a  Qualified  Mental 
 Health  Professional,  to  provide  services,  support  and  training  that  meets  the  needs  of 
 both Contractor and County as evidenced by the Service Authoriza�on and Ac�vity form. 

 B.  Contractor  shall  perform  all  services  deemed  necessary  in  their  professional  opinion 
 based  upon  their  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se  as  evidenced  in  the  applica�on 
 materials  and  other  professional  endorsements,  notwithstanding  any  limita�ons  set 
 forth in this agreement. 

 C.  Contractor  shall  only  use  methods  or  techniques  in  which  the  Contractor  has 
 documented  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se.  Contractor  will  ensure  services  provided 
 are  within  rules  and  guidelines  of  Oregon  Health  Authority,  Health  Services  Division: 
 Behavioral Health Services, Chapter 309-019. 

 2.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 A.  Contractors  must  provide  primary  source  verifica�on  of  creden�als.  No  work  will  be 
 assigned  to  Contractors  who  render  direct  service  to  clients  or  pa�ents  un�l  creden�als 
 have been validated for Medicaid claims. 

 B.  Annual  requirements  mandate  that  the  Contractor  will  submit  a  conflict  of  Interest 
 Statement.  Contractor  queries  of  the  OIG  and  EPLS  List  of  Excluded  Individuals/En��es 
 database  will  also  be  performed  annually.  Bases  for  exclusion  include  convic�ons  for 
 program-related  fraud  and  pa�ent  abuse,  licensing  board  ac�ons  and  default  on  Health 
 Educa�on  Assistance  Loans.  It  is  the  expecta�on  that  Contractor  will  maintain 
 creden�aling  required  to  perform  job  du�es  in  good  standing.  It  is  the  responsibility  of 
 the  Contractor  to  report  any  circumstances  that  would  jeopardize  this  standing  or  lead 
 to exclusionary status. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on  . 

 C.  Contractor  agrees  to  report  cases  of  suspected  Medicaid,  Medicare  fraud,  waste,  or 
 abuse  to  the  PCBH  Compliance  Officer  at  503-623-9289.  If  there  is  reason  to  believe 
 that  PCBH  cannot  respond  appropriately  to  a  suspected  case  of  fraud,  waste,  or  abuse, 
 or  if  the  case  involves  PCBH,  then  Contractor  agrees  to  make  a  report  to  Ethicspoint  at 
 888-265-4068. 

 18 



 D.  County  may  conduct  performance  reviews  annually  to  assess  Contractor’s  performance 
 as it relates to the services required under this contract. 

 E.  Absences: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  at  least  five  (5)  business  days  in  advance  for  all 
 an�cipated extended absences (i.e. vaca�ons, professional mee�ngs, etc.). 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  of  unplanned  absences  (ie:  illness  or  other 
 unforeseen events) at least one hour prior to expected work �me. 

 F.  Contractor  agrees  to  provide  10  business  day  no�ce  of  changes  to  their  clinic  schedule 
 availability. 

 G.  All  client  records  are  considered  the  property  of  the  County  and  shall  not  be  retained  by 
 the  Contractor.  Contractor  shall  have  all  service  notes  and  documenta�on  completed 
 within  three  business  days  of  service  encounter.  Contractor  shall  maintain  client/pa�ent 
 records and documenta�on within CMS guidelines. 

 H.  Contractor  may  elect  to  use  the  electronic  health  record  system  supported  by  the 
 County.  Contractor  shall  provide  County  with  a  Cer�ficate  of  Electronic  Health  Record 
 Technology  (CEHRT)  when  Contractor  elects  to  use  a  system  that  is  not  supported  by  the 
 County or Oregon Health Authority. 

 I.  Documents  that  are  required  for  billing  shall  be  submi�ed  three  days  a�er  the  close  of 
 business  on  the  last  weekday  of  each  month.  Documenta�on  found  to  be  out  of 
 compliance  with  County  and/or  State  guidelines  shall  be  corrected  within  ten  (10) 
 business days. 

 J.  Billable  service  notes  shall  meet  documenta�on  standards  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 309-019-0135 through 309-019-0145. 

 K.  Contractor  is  required  to  receive  clinical  supervision  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 309-019-0130  and  may  be  required  to  provide  documenta�on  of  supervision  received,  if 
 obtained  by  a  Clinical  Supervisor  Outside  of  County.  Failure  to  do  so  may  lead  to  contract 
 termina�on. 

 3.  AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

 A.  County  will  only  pay  for  service  and  ac�vi�es  that  have  been  pre  authorized  and  agreed 
 upon in wri�ng by both par�es on a Service and Ac�vity Authoriza�on Form. 

 19 



 4.  RATES AND METHOD OF PAY 

 A.  County  shall  reimburse  the  Contractor  at  the  rate  of  $5.00  per  hour  for  Call  Service 
 Hours  availability  as  outlined  in  the  Service  Ac�vity  Authoriza�on  form  with  Call  Service 
 Hours paid to the nearest quarter hour upon receipt of an invoice. 

 B.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  respond  in  a  �mely  manner  while  scheduled  for  Call  Service 
 Hours  and  a  back-up  must  be  called  to  respond,  the  Contractor  will  forfeit  the  Call 
 Service  Hours  fee  for  that  day.  The  only  excep�on  to  this  rule  will  be  if  the  Contractor  is 
 currently  handling  another  Polk  County  crisis.  If  non-responsiveness  becomes  a 
 consistent pa�ern or problem it could result in immediate termina�on of this contract. 

 C.  County  shall  reimburse  the  Contractor  at  the  rate  of  $60.00  per  hour  for  Billable  Services 
 as  outlined  in  the  Service  Ac�vity  Authoriza�on  form,  as  well  as  travel  �me  portal  to 
 portal, with services paid on a per occurrence basis to the nearest quarter hour. 

 D.  Contractor  shall  receive  $80.00  per  hour  for  Billable  Services  on  County  observed 
 holidays,  including  travel  �me  portal  to  portal,  with  services  paid  on  a  per  occurrence 
 basis to the nearest quarter hour. 

 E.  County  will  have  no  legal  obliga�on  to  pay  for  any  unauthorized  services,  including 
 unauthorized expenditures. 

 20 



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Behavioral Health  Consent Calendar Date:  August 16, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Marion County 

 Address:  3180 Center Street NE Ste 2100 

 City, State, Zip:  Salem, OR 97301-4572 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  $40,000.00 

 Background: 

 Marion County through its Psychiatric Crisis Center (PCC) has agreed to provide crisis evaluation 
 services to referred Polk County individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 This contract is a continuation of services Marion County’s PCC has been providing Polk County 
 individuals in the past fiscal year. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The total amount not to exceed for this contract is $40,000. The Behavioral Health Services budget 
 has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this contract. The fiscal year 2023-2024 
 Behavioral Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Marion County. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  06/21/23 

 CONTRACTOR  MARION COUNTY 
 3180 CENTER STREET NE #2100 
 SALEM, OR 97301 
 ID#:  93-6002307 

 CONTACT PERSON:  SARAH ORTIZ 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide appropriate crisis evalua ons, referrals, or other 
 related hospital diversion services to all Polk County 
 residents as outlined in Sec on 1 and Sec on 5. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM  JULY 01, 2023  THROUGH  JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  240-8540-540-M25 

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  Urgent Care Services: $32,000.00 max 
 Crisis Associate Services: $8,000.00 max 

 TERMS:  Urgent Care Services: $2,666.67/month 
 Crisis Associate Services: Rates per Sec on 4.2 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY FISCAL DEPARTMENT IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 23-172



 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 between 

 POLK COUNTY and MARION COUNTY 

 Project: PSYCHIATRIC CRISIS CENTER 

 1.  PARTIES TO AGREEMENT 

 THIS  AGREEMENT  is  made  and  entered  into  by  and  between  POLK  COUNTY,  a  poli cal 
 subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon,  herea er  called  COUNTY,  and  MARION  COUNTY,  a  poli cal 
 subdivision  of  the  state  of  Oregon,  herea er  called  AGENCY,  ac ng  by  and  through  its  governing 
 body is made pursuant to ORS 190.010 (Coopera ve Agreements). 

 2.  STATEMENT OF WORK 

 2.1.  Provide  appropriate  crisis  evalua on,  referral,  and  hospital  diversion  services  to  all  Polk 
 County  residents  who  arrive  at  Marion  County  Psychiatric  Center  (PCC)  or  the  Salem 
 Hospital Emergency Department at any hour of the day or night; and 

 2.2.  Placement  in  a  respite  se ng  or  dual  diagnosis  bed  in  accordance  with  Paci cSource 
 eligibility  requirements.  Daily  respite  costs,  including  crisis  associate  support  related  to 
 respite, are reimbursed separately from this contract. 

 2.3.  Crisis  Associate  services  as  requested  by  County,  as  available  by  Agency  and  detailed  in 
 Sec on 5. 

 3.  TERM AND TERMINATION 

 3.1.  This  Agreement  shall  be  e ec ve  for  the  period  commencing  upon  all  signatures  or 
 retroac ve  e ec ve  July  01,  2023,  depending  on  which  occurs  rst,  and  ending  on  June 
 30, 2024 unless terminated or extended as provided herein. 

 3.2.  This  Agreement  may  be  extended  for  an  addi onal  period  of  one  year  by  agreement  of  the 
 par es. Any modi ca ons in the terms of such amendment shall be in wri ng. 

 3.3.  This  agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  par es  at  any  me  or  by 
 either  party  upon  30  days  no ce  in  wri ng,  and  delivered  by  mail  or  in  person.  Any  such 
 termina on  of  this  agreement  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga ons  or  liabili es  of 
 either party already accrued prior to such termina on. 

 3.4.  The  County  may  terminate  this  agreement  e ec ve  upon  delivery  of  wri en  no ce  to  the 
 Agency or at such later date as may be established under any of the following condi ons: 

 1 



 a.  If  funding  from  federal,  state,  or  other  sources  are  not  obtained  or  con nued  at 
 levels  su cient  to  allow  for  the  purchase  of  the  indicated  quan ty  of  services.  This 
 agreement may be modi ed to accommodate a reduc on in funds. 

 b.  If  federal  or  state  laws,  regula ons  or  guidelines  are  modi ed  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 agreement  or  are  no  longer  eligible  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments 
 authorized by this agreement. 

 c.  If  any  license,  cer cate,  or  insurance  required  by  law  or  regula on  to  be  held  by  the 
 Agency  to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied, 
 revoked,  not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Agency  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cer cate. 

 d.  If  the  Agency  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  agreement  within  the 
 me speci ed herein or any extension thereof; or 

 e.  If  the  Agency  so  fails  to  perform  the  provisions  of  this  agreement  that  performance 
 of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and  a er  receipt  of 
 wri en  no ce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the  Agency  fails  to  correct 
 such  failure(s)  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period  as  the  County  may 
 authorize. 

 3.5.  Any  such  termina on  of  this  agreement  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga ons  or 
 liabili es of either party already accrued prior to such termina on. 

 4.  FUNDING AND BILLING 

 4.1.  County  Agrees  to  pay  Agency  an  amount  not  to  exceed  $32,000.00  for  the  term  of  this 
 agreement  and  as  approved  by  County  for  urgent  care  services,  at  the  rate  of  $2,666.67 
 per  month  (which  is  the  equivalent  cost  of  one  (1),  eight  (8)  hour  shi   per  week,  to  cover 
 the cost of services listed in Sec on 2 above); and 

 4.2.  County  agrees  to  pay  an  amount  not  to  exceed  $8,000.00  for  Crisis  Associate  services  for 
 actual services provided, as detailed by the following; 

 a.  County  to  reimburse  PCC  Crisis  Associate  (CA)  services  at  the  rate  of  $31.00  per  hour, 
 including drive me to and from the des na on for Polk County residents. 

 b.  County  to  reimburse  mileage,  which  is  calculated  on  a  “door  to  door”  basis  (from  PCC’s 
 door  to  the  des na on  and  return  to  PCC’s  door),  at  the  standard  IRS  mileage  rate  for 

 2 



 business  use  of  an  automobile,  currently  56  cents  per  mile  and  adjusted  as  this  rate 
 changes for services rendered to Polk County residents. 

 c.  Agency  agrees  to  bill  the  Mid  Willame e  Valley  Acute  Care  Region  for  transport  to 
 Marion County for hospital diversion services. 

 d.  County  will  be  invoiced  for  transport  to  Polk  County  from  any  diversion  service  from 
 Agency. 

 e.  When  Polk  County  Behavioral  Health  sta   request  services  for  a  client  in  Polk  County, 
 they  will  rst  call  the  Paci cSource  regional  liaison  for  authoriza on.  Marion  County  will 
 con rm Paci cSource liaison authoriza on before delivering the service. 

 4.3.  The  par es  agree  that  this  level  of  funding  may  need  to  be  modi ed  to  more  closely  align 
 to  the  level  of  service  actually  provided  and  agree  to  revisit  this  level  of  funding  six  (6) 
 months  from  the  e ec ve  date  of  this  contract.  Any  such  modi ca on  shall  be  in  wri ng 
 by mutual consent of the par es per Sec on 12 of this Agreement. 

 4.4.  It  is  agreed  that  Agency  shall  accept  payment  from  County  as  full  and  total  payment  for 
 crisis evalua on and referral services as well as associate services provided in Polk County. 
 Agency  shall  not  bill  any  County  clients  (or  their  insurance)  served  under  this  agreement 
 for services delivered hereunder  . 

 5.  OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT 

 In  addi on  to  urgent  care  services  contracted,  the  following  allows  for  the  u liza on  of 
 Behavioral  Health  Crisis  Associates  within  Polk  County  and  clari es  the  crisis  services  and 
 opera onal  parameters  that  Marion  County  Psychiatric  Crisis  Center  (PCC)  will  provide  to  Polk 
 County.  Currently  the  Paci cSource  contracts  with  Marion  County  for  crisis  services,  which  Polk 
 County has access to within Marion County. 

 5.1.  UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT, AGENCY SHALL: 

 a.  Provide  Crisis  Associates,  who  are  creden aled  as  Behavioral  Health  Associates,  to 
 provide services in Polk County. 

 b.  Provide  training,  orienta on,  and  supervision,  consistent  with  PCC  Crisis  Associate 
 standards, to Crisis Associates working in Polk County. 

 c.  Provide  hospital  diversion  services:  Within  their  scope  of  prac ce  there  are  a  number  of 
 hospital  diversion  services  that  a  Crisis  Associates  may  provide  in  support  of  the  crisis 
 plan. Typical uses of the PCC Crisis Associates include, but are not limited to: 

 3 



 1.  Suppor ng clients in their own homes. 

 2.  Brief check in with client, either face to face or by phone. 

 3.  Client skills training such as relaxa on and symptom management. 

 4.  Assistance accessing community resources. 

 5.  Transpor ng clients to appointments. 

 6.  Picking up medica ons for clients and medica on monitoring. 

 d.  Provide  copies  of  progress  notes  and  other  relevant  documenta on  of  PCC  Crisis  Associate 
 services provided in Polk County. 

 5.2.  UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT, COUNTY SHALL: 

 a.  Provide  an  evalua on  of  the  resident  in  need  of  crisis  services  including  a  descrip on  of  the 
 presen ng  problem,  current  symptoms,  risk  factors  and  clear  direc ons  for  services  to  be 
 provided. 

 b.  Provide  a  crisis  worker  who  is  a  Quali ed  Behavioral  Health  Professional  (QMHP)  available 
 24  hours  per  day  to  coordinate  and  develop  the  crisis  plan  as  well  as  support  the  PCC  Crisis 
 Associate.  This  crisis  plan  will  be  wri en  on  a  Marion  County  respite  form.  The  Polk  crisis 
 worker will provide a copy of the crisis evalua on to PCC. 

 c.  Provide  a  loca on  within  the  area  that  a  PCC  Crisis  Associate  can  safely  monitor  a  client 
 overnight. 

 d.  While  the  PCC  Crisis  Associates  are  working  for  Polk  or  its  subcontracted  A er  Hours 
 Response,  Polk’s  QMHP  sta   will  provide  backup  and  support  for  any  ques ons  arising  from 
 the Crisis Respite Plan, 24 hours a day. 

 e.  Give  the  PCC  Crisis  Associates  the  right  to  say  “no”  and  renego ate  a  plan  as  necessary  with 
 Polk’s QMHP crisis worker, par cularly if safety is a concern. 

 f.  If  inclement  weather  makes  the  drive  to  Polk  County  hazardous,  PCC  Crisis  Associates  are 
 not obligated to go un l condi ons improve. 

 5.3.  RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES 

 a.  At  all  mes  under  this  agreement,  individuals  either  employed  or  volunteering  at  the 
 Agency  to  perform  services  under  this  agreement  shall  be  agents  of  the  Agency.  No 
 individual  at  the  Agency  performing  services  under  this  agreement  shall  be  considered  an 

 4 



 employee  or  agent  of  the  County  nor  shall  they  be  en tled  to  any  rights  and/or  bene ts 
 conferred to County employees. 

 6.  COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 

 The  par es  agree  that  both  shall  comply  with  all  federal,  state,  and  local  laws  and  ordinances 
 applicable  to  the  work  to  be  done  under  this  agreement.  The  par es  agree  that  this  agreement 
 shall be administered and construed under the laws of the state of Oregon. 

 7.  NONDISCRIMINATION 

 The  par es  agree  to  comply  with  all  applicable  requirements  of  federal  and  state  civil  rights  and 
 rehabilita on statutes, rules and regula ons in the performance of this agreement. 

 8.  HOLD HARMLESS 

 To  the  extent  permi ed  by  Ar cle  XI,  Sec on  7  of  the  Oregon  Cons tu on  and  by  the  Oregon 
 Tort  Claims  Act,  each  party  agrees  to  waive,  forgive,  and  acquit  any  and  all  claims  it  may 
 otherwise  have  against  the  other  and  the  o cers,  employees,  and  agents  of  the  other,  for  or 
 resul ng  from  damage  or  loss,  provided  that  this  discharge  and  waiver  shall  not  apply  to  claims 
 by  one  party  against  any  o cer,  employee,  or  agent  of  the  other  arising  from  such  person's 
 malfeasance  in  o ce,  willful  or  wanton  neglect  of  duty,  or  ac ons  outside  the  course  and  scope 
 of  his  or  her  o cial  du es.  For  any  and  all  claims  against  either  County  or  Agency  from  a  third 
 party,  each  party  agrees  to  defend  and  indemnify  each  other  for  any  and  all  claims  arising  from 
 the ac ons of their employees and/or agents. 

 9.  INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

 Each  party  shall  insure  or  self-insure  and  be  independently  responsible  for  the  risk  of  its  own 
 liability for claims within the scope of the Oregon tort claims act (ORS 30.260 TO 30.300). 

 10.  MERGER CLAUSE 

 Par es  concur  and  agree  that  this  agreement  cons tutes  the  en re  agreement  between  the 
 par es.  No  waiver,  consent,  modi ca on  or  change  to  the  terms  of  this  agreement  shall  bind 
 either  party  unless  in  wri ng  and  signed  by  both  par es.  There  are  no  understandings, 
 agreements,  or  representa ons,  oral  or  wri en,  not  speci ed  herein  regarding  this  agreement. 
 Par es,  by  the  signatures  below  of  their  authorized  representa ves,  hereby  agree  to  be  bound 
 by its term and condi ons. 

 5 



 11.  NOTICES 

 Any  no ce  required  to  be  given  the  Agency  or  County  under  this  Agreement  shall  be  su cient  if 
 given, in wri ng, by rst class mail or in person as follows: 

 AGENCY 

 Ryan Ma hews 
 Health & Human Services Administrator 
 Marion County Health & Human Services 
 3180 Center Street, Suite 2100 
 Salem, OR 97301 
 rma hews@co.marion.or.us 

 COUNTY 

 Jennifer Lief 
 Health Services Division Manager 
 Polk County Behavioral Health 
 182 SW Academy Street, Suite 333 
 Dallas, OR 97338 
 lief.jennifer@co.polk.or.us 

 REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 6 



 SIGNATURES 

 This agreement and any changes, altera ons, modi ca ons, or amendments will be e ec ve 
 when approved in wri ng by the authorized representa ve of the par es hereto as of the 
 e ec ve date set forth herein. 

 In witness whereof, the par es hereto have caused this agreement to be executed on the date 
 set forth below along with the following: 

 ●  Appendix A: Business Associate Agreement

 AGENCY 

 Ryan Ma hews  Date 
 Health & Human Services  Administrator 

 Date 

 Chief Administra ve O cer  Date 

 Marion County Legal Counsel  Date 

 Marion County Contracts  Date 

 COUNTY 

 Commissioner (Chair)  Date 

 Commissioner  Date 

 Commissioner  Date 

 Noelle Carroll  Date 
 Health Services Director 

 Morgan Smith  Date 
 County Counsel 

 7 

Ann-Marie Bandfield
Health Program Manager

7/31/2023



 APPENDIX A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 between 
 POLK COUNTY  and  MARION COUNTY 

 A.  DEFINITIONS:  Except  as  otherwise  de ned  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA 
 Agreement),  any  and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  de ni on  as  those  in 
 the  HIPAA  Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poli cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of 
 Oregon,  shall  be  referred  to  as  “COUNTY”  and  Marion  County,  a  poli cal  subdivision  of 
 the State of Oregon, shall be referred to as “CONTRACTOR”. 

 B.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 1.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa on  other  than 
 as permi ed or required by this BA Agreement or as permi ed or required by law. 

 2.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health Informa on other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 3.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  mi gate,  to  the  extent  prac cable,  any  harmful  e ect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa on  by 
 CONTRACTOR in viola on of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 4.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  Informa on  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 5.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  Informa on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restric ons  and 
 condi ons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informa on. 

 6.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  Informa on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa on in performance of Business Associate func ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden fiable Health Informa on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 8 



 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 7.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  Informa on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  me  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 8.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  prac ces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  Informa on,  rela ng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  me  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 9.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa on 
 and  informa on  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health Informa on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 10.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  me  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informa on  collected  in  accordance 
 with  sec on  2.1  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 C.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 
 this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health Informa on to 
 perform certain health plan func ons for or on behalf of the COUNTY as speci ed in the 
 Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 
 would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 
 policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 D.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 1.  The COUNTY shall no fy CONTRACTOR of any limita on(s) in the  No ce of Privacy 
 Prac ces  of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR  § 164.520, to the extent that 

 9 



 such limita on may a ect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health 
 Informa on. 

 2.  The COUNTY shall no fy CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revoca on of, 
 permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Informa on, to the 
 extent that such changes may a ect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected 
 Health Informa on. 

 3.  The COUNTY shall no fy CONTRACTOR of any restric on to the use or disclosure of 
 Protected Health Informa on that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 
 CFR § 164.522, to the extent that such restric on may a ect CONTRACTOR’S use or 
 disclosure of Protected Health Informa on. 

 E.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 
 use or disclose Protected Health Informa on in any manner that would not be 
 permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or 
 disclosure is permi ed under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 F.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 1.  Term  . This BA Agreement shall be e ec ve as of July  01, 2023, and shall terminate 
 when all of the Protected Health Informa on provided by the COUNTY to 
 CONTRACTOR, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is 
 destroyed or returned to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 
 Protected Health Informa on, protec ons are extended to such informa on, in 
 accordance with the termina on provisions in this Sec on. 

 2.  Termina on for Cause  . Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge  of a material breach by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 a.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 
 interven on of the COUNTY within the meline speci ed in Sec on 16.B1 of the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 b.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and 
 the Polk County Agreement within the meline speci ed in Sec on 16 of the Polk 
 County Agreement. At the direc on of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may 
 terminate this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permi ed in 
 Sec on 16 of the Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the 

 10 



 breach upon conclusion of the technical assistance and correc ve ac on 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this sec on; or 

 c.  If neither termina on nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the viola on 
 to the Secretary. 

 3.  E ect of Termina on  . 

 a.  Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this sec on, upon termina on of this BA 
 Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected 
 Health Informa on received from the COUNTY, or created or received by 
 CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected 
 Health Informa on that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
 CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the Protected Health 
 Informa on. 

 b.  In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 
 Protected Health Informa on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 
 COUNTY wri en no ca on of the condi ons that make return or destruc on 
 infeasible. Upon wri en acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 
 destruc on of Protected Health Informa on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall 
 extend the protec ons of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health 
 Informa on and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health 
 Informa on to those purposed that make the return or destruc on infeasible, for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health Informa on. 

 G.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 1.  Regulatory References  . References in this BA Agreement  to the Privacy Rule or any 
 sec on of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or sec on as in e ect or as 
 amended. 

 2.  Amendment  . The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take  such ac on as is 
 necessary to amend this BA Agreement from me to me as is necessary for the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 3.  Survival  . The respec ve rights and obliga ons of  CONTRACTOR under Sec on 6.C of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the termina on of this BA Agreement. 

 11 



 4.  Interpreta on  . Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 
 COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between 
 the provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy 
 Rule, the Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other 
 federal law is more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or 
 federal law shall control. 

 H.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 1.  Background Requirement  : The COUNTY, in accordance  with § 164.306 and § 164.308 
 (b), may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 
 Protected Health Informa on on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 
 sa sfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 
 appropriately safeguard the informa on. The COUNTY must document the 
 sa sfactory assurances through a wri en contract or other arrangement with the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 2.  Part I. Security Assurances  : The CONTRACTOR will Implement  administra ve, 
 physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
 con den ality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health 
 informa on that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 
 COUNTY as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
 1996 and the requirements of Health Insurance Reform, the Security Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 a.  Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 
 informa on, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 
 protect it. 

 b.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 c.  Authorize termina on of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 3.  Part II.  Other arrangements:  When the COUNTY and the  CONTRACTOR are both 
 governmental en es, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 a.  It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objec ves of Part I.; or 

 12 



 b.  Other  law  (including  regula ons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objec ves of Part I. 

 4.  If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a func on or ac vity on behalf of 
 the COUNTY or to provide a service described in the de ni on of CONTRACTOR as 
 speci ed in § 160.103 of the regula on to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 
 CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 
 Informa on on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 
 without mee ng the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will a empt in 
 good faith to obtain sa sfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will 
 document the a empt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if 
 not obtained. 

 13 



HUMAN RESOURCES
POLK COUNTY

TO

POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSB * DALLAS, OREGON 97338-3174
(503) 623-1888 *rax (503) 623-1889

MEMORANDUM

Board of Commissioners

FROM: Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director

DATE: August 11,2023

SUBJECT: New Job Specification and Wage

Wednesday - August 16, 2023 (Consent)

RECOMMENDATION:
The Board of Commissioners approve the new job specification and wage.

ISSUE:
Shall the Board approve this new job specification and wage?

DISCUSSION:
It is recommended that the Board of Commissioners adopt a new job specification for a
Discovery/Evidence Supervisor within the District Attorney's office. This position will oversee all
activities within the Discovery/Evidence division in the DA's office and supervise all assigned
employees.

The salary range for the DiscoveryiEvidence Supervisor will be (37E) $4,494 - $5,686.

FISCAL IMPACT:
No fiscal impact for FY 23-24.





POLK C

POLK COUNTY CI.ASS SPE,CIFICATION
Dr scovERY/EvTDENCE SUPERVI SOR

Class Spec. Numbet:
Representation: Non-Represented

FLSA Status: Non-Exempt
Salary Range 36E

GENERAL STATEMENT OF DUTIES: Supervises and provides guidance and dfuection to

Discovery/Evidence staff. Performs a wide vaiery of complex clerical tasks including the requesting of
evidence and production of discovery as defined by policy and procedures of the District Attomey's

office.

SUPERVISION RECENG,D: Works under the supervision of the District Attomey Office Manager

who outlines general policies and procedures, advises on difficult or unusual problems and reviews

work for effectiveness and compliance with policy, rules and regulations.

SUPERVISION EXERCISED: Assigns and reviews work of Discovery/Evidence Clerks.

Responsible for the recruiting, selecting and training of Discovery/Evidence staff. Ensures D&E staff

receives necessaly support to perforrn their duties and tesponsibilities efficiently and effectively.

PRINCIPAL DUTIES: An employee in this classificaion may perform any of the following duties.

However, these examples do not include all the specific tasks which an employee m^y be expected to

perform.

1,. As a continuing primary responsibility, perfotms complex clerical work involving the analysis of
a .varlety of source materials and z thotough famrhaity with policies and ptocedures,

terminology and various applicable laws in order to obtain necessary discovery/evidence.

2. Maintains discovery logs in IGryel with propet notadons of any and all acdons applicable to the

receipt of all discovery/evidence.

3. Requests evidence both independently and at the mstruction of attomeys.

4. Monitors the status of evidence requests. Copies or duplicates all discovery/evidence and

delivers or causes to be delivered to defense counsel all discovery/evidence putsuant to all rules

and tegulations.

5. Issues property disposition memos at the close of each case.

6. Redacts CD/DVDs ot 
^ny 

other discovery as instructed by zttorneys

7. Performs a wide vadety of clerical wotk; conducts transacdons with staff andf ot the public in
matters requiring knowledge of County ptocedures, policies, precedents, and operad.ons.

8. Supervises others in the performance of roudne clerical and office duties. May screen visitors

and phone calls, receive mail and identiSr and tefer matters in ordet of priority.

9. Supplies information involving facts and interptetations; prepares documents based on data

obtained from records and other soufces; processes in accordance with ptescribed procedures.

10. Operates office machines and special ptocessing equipment.



11. Assigns back up assistance to office specialists when needed.

12' Pefforms othet dffi:tr, independent and technical clerical work requiring knowledge of the
procedwes and policies of the office or unit.

13' May attend headngs or meetings to tecord officialactions and significant parts of discussions in
the absence of the District Attorney Office Manager.

14' Ensues all policies, procedures and regulations are followed by D&E Staff. \Works in
conjunction with Personnel to address personnel issues vrithin the Discovery/Evidence division
of the District Attorney,s Office.

15' oversees recruiftnent, hiring and training of all Discovery/Evidence employees. Assigns and
reviews work of all D&E staff' Ptovides regular and annual evaluation of all a"ssrgned
employees.

16. Performs related duties as required.

EMPLOYI\{ENT QUALIFICATIONS:

Knowledge of: regulations, procedures, and laws regarding discovery and evidence; modernoffice methods, procedutes and equipmenq -.f"at'g the pt"pur"tior of business
conespondence and reports, filing and operation of standard office'eqoipment, computer
terminal and software related to function; proper Enghsh usage, ,p"it rg grammar and
arithmetic.

Ability to: petform difficult and responsible clerical work involving independent judgment and
requiring accvt^cy and speed; make clear and comprehensive ,"por"o urrd k".p Afficjt records;
understand and carty out oral and written instructions; type accurately ftom JLr, .opy 

^t 
a tate

of 50 words pet minute; establish and maintain effective working r.lationrhipr; .rr. .o^por.,
terminal and related software; make arithm"ri. .2lsulations with ,p"."d and, accuracy.

the equivalent GED cerdficate. Three
Gtaduation from high school or possession of

(3) years of incteasingly responsible cledcal experience, plus two
Q) years of experience in a Disttict Attomey office within Discovery and Evidence, or 

^ny 
equivalent

combination of education, experience

Discovery/Evidence Supervisor - 51 6
AdoptedS/23

and tmining.


	Staff Contact: Dana Goodale
	Department: FCO
	Title: SBMH Supervisor
	Consent Calendar Date: 
	Contractor Name: Dallas School District
	Contractor Address: 111 SW Ash St.
	City, State, Zip: Dallas, OR 97338
	From: July 1, 2023
	Thru: June 30, 2024
	Contract Amount: 531,231
	Sole Source: Yes
	Competitive Quote: Off
	Formal Bid: Off
	Request for Proposals: Off
	Personal Services: Off
	Special/Exempt: Off
	Special Exempt: 
	Discussion: The purpose of this Contract is to provide School Based Mental Health services to students and families of Dallas School District through the ongoing employment of 6 FTE Mental Health Staff, 5 stationed full time in schools and 1 floating Resource Connector.
	Fiscal Impact: Without this contract we would not be able to provide School Based Mental Health services to students and families of Dallas School District.
	Recommendation: 
	E-mail: goodale.dana@co.polk.or.us
	Email 3: 
	Name 1: Dana Goodale
	Name 2: Jennifer Segovia
	E-mail 2: segovia.jennifer@co.polk.or.us
	Name 3: 


